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Auditor Report

To: The Shareholders of Dice Ready-Made Garments - 5.A.E. (Dice Spart and Casual Wear)

Report on the consalidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dice Ready-Made Garments
Company - S.A.E (Dice Sport and Casual Wear), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as of December 31, 2023, and the consolidated statements of prefit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting pelicies and other

explanatory infarmation.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management, Management is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and the applicable Egyptian laws. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consalidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Egyptian Standards an Auditing and the applicable Egyptian laws,
those standards require plan and perform the sudit to obtain reascnable assurance ahout whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's professional judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the seprate financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinian on the consolidated financial statements.



Saleh, Barsoum, & Abdel Aziz — Grant Thornton TIAG — Dr./ Hisham Labib and partners

Accountants and Auditors Accountants and Auditors

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above, present fairly in all material respects
the consolidated financizl position of Dice Ready-Made Garments Company - S.A.E (Dice Sport and Casual Wear)
as of December 31, 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and the related applicable Egyptian
laws and regulations.

Emphasis of Matter

Without a qualified our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, The net accumulated loss including
the current year profit of Sweater Ready-made Garments Company (Subsidiary), as of December 31, 2023
exceeded half of the equity of the subsidiary as of that date, which indicates material uncertainity that may cast
doubt concerning the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. According to article no. 69 of the
Companies’ Law no. 159 of 1981 amended by Law no. 4 of 2018, the Subsidiary’s Board of Directors should
invite to an extraordinary general assembly meeting to convene to discuss EOINE concern.

Without a qualified our opinion on the consolidated financial statements , The net accumulated loss including
the current year profit of Alexandria Factory Ready-made Garments Company (Subsidiary), as of
December 31, 2023 exceeded half of the equity of the subsidiary as of that date, which indicates material
uncertainity that may cast doubt concerning the Company’s zbility to continue as a going concern. According
to article no. 89 of the Companies’ Law no. 159 of 1981 amended by Law no. 4 of 2018, the Subsidiary’s Board
of Directors should invite to an extraordinary general assembly meeting to convene ta discuss going concern.

Without a qualified our opinion on the consolidated financial statements , The net accumulated loss including
the current year loss of Alexandria Ready-made Garments Company (Subsidiary), as of December 31, 2023
exceeded half of the equity of the subsidiary as of that date, which indicates material uncertainity that may cast
doubt concerning the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. According to article no. 63 of the
Companies’ Law no. 159 of 1981 amendeq’,by Law no. 4 of 2018, the Subsidiary’s Board of Directors should

invite to an extraordinary general assembi/ meeting to convene to discuss going concern.
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Notes Decernber 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Amenced

Assels Ne. EGF EGP
Mor-current aesels
Property, plant ard equipment (et (SE, €) 585 100 449 490 063 550
Frojects under canstruction |5F. 7] 25 7h5 639 21617622
Righ-of-use assets [net) 159, 18] 4€ 952 932 56 387 856
intangible assets [Trade mark) (&) 200 000 200 000
Total non-current assets 062015020 5h% 275 028
Current assets it
[ventaries (nes) 5,9, 15) 1056652 396 B36 035025
Accounts and notes receivable (net) (54, 10, 15) 714 434 700 526 051501
Investment certificates (11) 150 965 87 -
Treasay shares 5 30015051
Debtors and other debit balances (net) {12, 15) 201 195 715 193 124 412
Cash and cash eguivatent 5T 13) 154049 434 108 302 302
Total current assets 2237 389 121 1693 542 302
Total assets 2959408 141 2 261 817 330
Equity and liabitities
lssued and fully paid-up capital {21} 357 328 956 357 328 955
Legal reserve (5W] 28311276 22391913
Business combinalion reserve (22) 570130 570 130
Ketained earnings 180 430 165 40407 685
Met profit far the year 447 802 322 121441 843
Equity attributable ta owners’ of the holding company 1014 432 §49 542 140 527
Mor-controlling interest [24) 20 493 636 17 €07 822
Total equity 1034 936 485 EE9 748 445
Won-current liabilities
Borrowiags - ron-current portion (50, 17) G5 B55 424 107 581 817
Right-cf-use liabilities - non-current (5P, 2B) 33 500 15% 43 028 935
Finance lease iiability - non-current - 3403 162
Deferred tex liabilities (S, 23) 46 565 949 36627777
Total non-Current Liabilities 145 721 532 150 641 691
Current Liabilities
Provisions [5L, 14) 55347518 41415 237
Crecit banks (5%) 2050723 2 864 781
Credit faciitios (50, 18) 1182 353 450 564 843 613
Bonrowings - corrent portion (50, 17} 71582 327 89 249 669
Accounts and nates payable {5V, 18] 252 113 194 245 486 263
Cue to related parties [Saa, 19) 15411 148 236333
Finance leasa liability - current - 6946278
Right-of-use liabilities - current portion (5F, 28) 20 204 ©gs 17 852 818
Creditors and other credit nalances (20) 138 975 026 88 632675
Iacome tax payable 1] 40 706 733 43 B9S 523

Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Dice for Ready-Made Garments 5.A.F
(Dice Sport & Casual Wearl

Consolldated statement of financial position

As of December 31, 2023

Trans!otion of Consofidated Financial

Storements Griginolly lssued in Arabic

1778750124

1511427 190

2 959 408 141

2 261 B17 330

The accempanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statemients to be read therewith,

Managing Director
ir. Nagi Thoma

L,)J"C_,?L‘

Chief Finance Officer
Mr. Victor Fakhry

(\\r’

Auditar report attached




Net sales
Less .

Cost of sales

Tronslotion of Consoligated Financiol

Stotements Qriginally Issued in ArgDic

Dice for Ready-IMade Garments 5.4.E
(Dice Spart & Casual Wear)
Consclidated statement of profit or loss
For the Year ended as of December 31, 2023

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Gross profit

Deduct) / add

Selling and distribution expenses

General and edministrative expenses

Interest expenses on lease liability

Amortization of right-of-use assets

Frofit from disposal of right-of-use assets

Provisions formed

Reversal of impairment previcusly recognized on Inventory
Expected credit loss during the year

Reversal of zxgected credit loss

Impairment previously recognized on other debit balances

Operating profit

(Deduct) /add:

Finance cosis

inierest income

income from Investments and treasury bilis
Other incame

Capital gain {loss)

Foreign currency exchange differences
Meat profit for the year before income tax
Income tax

Met profit for the year after income tax
Attributed to:

Owners of the Company

Man - controlling interest

Earnings per share (EGP / share)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consohidated financial statements to be read therewith.

Chief Finance Officer
Mr. Victor Fakhry

MNotes
N :" Amended
i EGP EGP

(53) 3432 378 586 2 133 306 947
(2 453 105 565) (1621 290026)
979 273 017 512 016 921
(84 807 820} (93 649 825)
{198 155 300) (160 716 987)
(5P, 29) (6753 987) {5652 554)
{57, 29) (13 963 880) (18 686 991)
{57, 29) 470 855 504 784
(5L, 14) (15 340 042) (5229 468)
{5U, 15) - 3,273,943
{5U, 15) (3517 803) (10 082 019)
(5L, 15) 600 000 -
(5U, 15} { 958 045) {3063 514)
644 797 015 218 514 292
(154 394 552) (88772 022)
257 006 1750 427
9931 935 2258 293
{25) 99 846 226 60 791 063
22 082 460 116
(5H) (98 040 770) (33 432 433)
502 488 942 161 569 736
(51, 23) (51 800 906) (40 813 446)
450 688 036 120 756 290
447 802 322 121 441 843
2 885 714 [ 685 553)
450 688 036 120 756 290
i5Y, 27) 0.26 0.12

Managing Director
Mr. Nagi Thoma

Loy (=)




Transiotion of Consoliduied Financial
Storements Criginolly issued in Arobic

Dice for Ready-'viade Garments S.A.E
{Dica Sport & Casual Wear]
Consulidated statement of ccmprenensive incame
Far the Year ended as of December 31, 2023

y December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Notes e
'r',";_ Amended
= EGe EGP
Net profit for the year after income tax 450 688 036 120756 250
items of other comprehensive income
Debit currency valuation differences resulting from the impact of the
application of Annex (B) to Egyptian Accounting Standard wNo. {13] - {103 005 891)
amended 2015
Total comprehensive (less) income 450 688 U3b 17 746 399
Attributed to:
Dwrers of the Company 447 802 322 13 431952
Nan - controlling interes: 2BEETI4 [ 635 553
450 GE8E 036 17 746 39¢
Earnings per share from Total comprehensive income (EGP / share) 5¥, 27) 0.26 0.02

The accompanying roles form an integral part of the censolidated financial statements to be read therewith,

Chief Finance Officer Managing Director
Mr. Victor Fakhry Mr. Nagi Thoma

Y b e b

=



..... I Ganments 5.4.€

Dice Sport & Casual Wear]
Consulidated statemaent of cash flow

For the Year ended as of December 31, 2023

fransfoiion of Cocse!idoted Financis!
ally (ssued i Arobi

5 i

Far the yoar ended

— December 31, 2023
Ho. men
EGP e

Cash Flows from Opersting Activities
Het orclit for the vear befars income tax 5002 488 541 54 509 845
Adjusred by:
Property, plant and equipmenrs depree zrian {ag, b) 43 317 005 4118414
Currency Cifferences Relaning to Lasting Liaoihities {Appendix B o
Egvptian Accounting Stendard Ne. (13) Amended 20151 " Disc asure No B (27 11257
3qe
amartization af nght-cfuse 2siets 19 963 38O 18 586 981
Imrerest rost - lease cantracis Right ol use G753 967 £ 552552
Boofit from vaposs of right-of-use assats | 42¢ 255} | 504 784)
Provisions farmed 15 34C N42 5429 466
Reversal of impanment previcusly recogrized on invemary = 13 473 943)
Expected credit loss during the year 4517 503 10082019
Reversal of expeclec credin loss { GO 220]
Used during the vear from expected credit fass in rocoivables balance 1615 715} -
Elsead from impairent of other debit balances curing the y2ar 262 0458 3063514
Intarest incoma | #57 OD&] 11750437}
Finance costs 154 304 552 g8 772022
Capital (luss) / Gein (32 082} {450 116)
Cperatng profit before changes in working capital 749 A58 378 197 162 9835
Increase ir inveniories and eiter of Creaits [230:557 7B9) (185 466 90T}
Incresse [ {decrease] in accounts and notes receivable {196 135 187 (224 147 406}
Increzse in debtors, ather debit balances {5030 248] {75 196 444}
D#crease in accounts and nofes payable Bol6 931 1 352 G98
Increase [/ (cecrease) » wiedilors and othe: aedit balances 11 962 783 {13 785 935)
[Decrease] [ increase in dueto related parties 15174 815 i2 778 701)
Used from prowisions {1407 761} {13 298 38D)
Net cash flaws gererated from operating activities B E‘SGS- ?CI:I.?Z_Z_ (252 139 330}
Taxe: nawd {43599 523} [L1241 72B)
Interest paid {146 837 792| {86 550 778)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 171 964 607 [355 931 296)
Cash flows from (nvesting activities
Proceeds from credit interest 157 006 1750427
rayments for purchase treasury shares 3G 019 0b1 {30 D19 01
Nayments foir purchase investment certificates {160 9A5 78] .
Srcceeds from sale of praperty, alant and aginpiment 72 089 475 316
‘Payments for] finance lease {10 344 220 (12353 5300
(Payments for] purchasng of property, pient and equipment * [128 372 353) {45 297 481)
(Payments) projects uncer canstructian {14 48¢ 100! (13 774 428)
Met cash flows (used in) investing activiries 1283 5_3_5_853] . {103 ISB‘EIE-BT
Cash flows fram financing
reareeds from capital increase - 251 338956
Fraceeds frem treasary shares 24 300 £20
Froreeds from bonowing (59 523 735] 1833291
[Payments to) / orozeads from cragit facilities J17 308 337 235 603 C15
Fayments for right-ol-use liabilitjes {23 683 857] {21 083 104)
Dividerds pand - {13 D40 726)
Netcash Nlows [used in) / generated from financing activities 158 432 435 454 541432
Net change in cash and cash rquivalents during the year 46 581 189 {2 509 552)
Cash znd cash egquivalents a1 the heginning of the year 205437 522 110947 074
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {8, 13} 151 998711 105 £37 522

The accampanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financal statements to be read therevnth,

* The effess of non-cass ransactians represented m the value of prajectsunder construction bramsferrec to fised assets amountad to EGP 10
34% D&Y, have been elinaested, in grder Lo reach the amounts pard 17 2380 In the purchase of fixed assets,

=+ Trne effecy af non-cash transactions represented in Wie value of fixed assets crediors amounted 1o EGP 2 657 235, have been eliminated, in

arder e reach the amounts pad incash in the purchase of fised assats,

Chigl Finznce Otficer
Mr. Vietor Fakhry

v

. al

Managing Director

Mr. Nagi Thoma

L,.;’qf-\_'




Dice for Ready-ftade Garments 5 AF

|Dice Sport & Casual Wear

Consalidated statement of chanpes in equity

For the Year ended 23 of December

L2023

Trunstatien of Consolidared Fin

Stoterments Onawotly liswed i Avghic

Eb__ = Treasury Cigiit e E Net profir Owners of the
paid-up capital shares T combmalion reserve et company Tutal
Rate No. SE e
£GP £GP el] 2o EGP £ep EGP £GP Eae
Balance as of December 31, 2021 16 GO0 DO - 2} 352239 575637 0933612 31878690 367 695178 33080933 a00 777 166
Amendiment Lo relaed eamngs for change npol {344 a3 - e (61237 350) 132 341 31 (94063 612 (94 063 512
Ralanee as of Decembar 31, 2021 ahier amendmeam 106 D00 000 - 21 3527239 575637 146 717 312 [LO12 622} 273631568 33 DBD 988 306713 554
Amgcunts pand for capital increase 251 328956 - = - - s 251 37R 956 251 37R 656
Transferred to retaned eam - = ] = (1012 623) 1012622 - -
Transterred to tegal reseren =5 = 1039672 = {100 574] - - -
transferoed to -w-. e .H»u_.“_.__._m._. as a result of the ac = = i - B - ) (1094 227) (1884 227!
€ of Uhe subsidary comparny
- - - % 507] - > (5507 s [ 5507
Ddends for cmployees of subsidiaries - - - - {1 247 410] -- (1237 440} {1 227 aag)
Munarity equity share of subsidianes ¢ zcl e p= g & = 117 [12 783 286}
i 2 compongnt: EL - -
{31) = i : = 121441 843 | B85 553} 120756 290
red ta retaned sarnings in same date of loregn exchange loss K *a 22 ot _ . (udussmuy ; {103 009 8911
Balance as of Decamber 31, 2022 357 378 955 S 22391513 570130 542 140527 17 607 922 559 748 449
Iransfersed to retaned earnings - - - - 121441 B4 [123 447 B43) - - =
Trezsury shares 131 500 DCO) - (31 500 000) =z (31 500000
Gam from sell teeasury shares = 31500 000 - - 24,500,000 - 56 000 000 t 56 000000
Transfered to Legal reserve - - 5819363 {0 9159 363 - - - -
Cther comprehensive income compunents :
Beot lncome after tax 7 -~ x o Gl Ad7 302 327 ad7 Bz 322 JHE5 718 450 6BB 036
Batance as of Drermber 31, 2023 18311376 570130 180 4:0 165 447 802 322 1014 252 849 20493 636

357 328 95b

1039 936 485

The accompanying notes form an integral part of 1he consedidated financiz! statements to be read therewith,

Chief Finance Officer
nr, Viclar Fakluy

(
LA -

Managing Directs
Mr. Nagr Thoma

r¢nhhu o 9



Transiation of nates to the consolidated Financial Staiements
Originally Issued in Arabic

MNotes on consalidated financial statements

For the year ended December 31, 2023

General information

Dice for Ready Made Garments 5.A.E. {Dice Sport & Casual Wear)

Dice for Ready-Made Garments S.A.E (referred to as ‘Dice for Spart & Casual Wear’, 'Dice’ or "the Company’) was
incorporated in accordance with the article of association dated April 12, 1997 pursuant to the provisions of Law
No. 159 of 1981 and its Executive Regulations. The Company was registered on August 21, 1997 in Commercial
Register under Na. 306985. and the company's period is 25 years from the date of registration ending on August
19, 2047 and renewed for similar periods.

The Company’s purpose is to manufacture all types of ready-made garments, embroidery, printing, importing
raw materials, production requirements, machinery, equipment, spare parts and to export the Company's
products to foreign markets.

On 8 November 2023, the EGX announced the amendment of the company's purpose by adding the activity of
manufacturing clothing accessories on various types of socks, zippers, buttons, pressers, sticks, cardoons and
others,

The Company's headquarter is located on Misr [smailia Desert Road, Industrial Zone, Egypt.
The chairman of the Company is Mrs. Schir Samy Riad.

The financial statements for the year ended as of December 31, 2023 were approved by the Board of Directars
on March 18, 2024.

The Group directly owns the following rights in the following subsidiaries:

Direct share Direct share
Campany
percentage percentage
2023 2022
Alexandria for Ready-made Garments Company (1-1)
95.999% 59.999%
Sweeter Ready-made Garments Company (1-1) 99.0999% 99.9999;
Alexandria Factory Ready-made Garments Company (1-1
v ready pany {1-4) 99.999% 99.999%
Master Line for Textile Industries (1-2)
99.999% 99.999%
United Dyers (1-3)*
82.60% 82.60%
Egyptian for Knitting and Ready-made (1-4
KB . 2 el 99.999% 99.999%
Textile Print Plus (1-5)**
99.99% 99.59%

(1-1) During October 2014, the Company signed an acquisition contract for Alexandria Ready Made Garments,
Alexandria Factory Ready-Made Garments and Sweeter Ready-Made Garments, whereby control aver these
companies was seized by Dice on the completion of certain obligations as stipulated in the cantract, mainly
related to the completion of the capital increase of the company. The ownership was transferred to the Company
during February 2015.

- On December 25, 2018 the company acquired an additional stock in Alexandria Clothes Company and
Alexandria Garment Factory. The acquired share reached 5% of the total capital of both companies for
EGP 1 999 360.

-OnJanuary 28, 2019 the company acquired an additional stock in Sweeter Ready-Made Garments. The acquired
share reached 5% of the total capital of the company for EGP 568,

Dice Ready-Made Garments S.A.E (Dice for Sport and Casual Wear) 1
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023
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Translotion of notes to the consolidated Financiol Staternents
Criginally Issued in Arabic

(1-2) On July 6, 2015, Master Line for Textile Industries was acquired through a share transfer from National

Textiles Company and the Touma family (the main shareholders of Dice Ready Made Garments).

(1-3) On July 6, 2015, United dyers Company was acquired through a share acquisition from the old shareholders
of United Dyers Company as Dice has acquired the control by obtaining control over the Company’s voting rights.

The contract included a candition ta recansider the sale price within one year from the date of acquisition, and
accordingly the final price of the target was set at EGP 33.37 million.

(1-4) On September 30, 2014, the Company signed an agreement for the acquisition of the shares of Egyptian
Company for knitting and Ready-mades, after the completion of all procedures for the transfer of ownership of
shares to the buyer. Ownership was transferred to the Company on September 15, 2015,

On August 18, 2018, The Company has completed the capital of the subsidiary by EGP 3 320 000 and paid in full.

(1-5) On May 30, 2012, the Company established the Textile Print Plus Company, in accardance with the
provisions of the Companies Law No. 159 of 1981 and was registered in the Commercial Register under No. 58681
with an issued capital of EGP 3 million. The Company increased its capital by EGP 569 985 which was noted in
the commercial register dated April 14, 2016.

On lanuary 31, 2024, the Extraordinary General Assembly took a decision to liquidate the company and appoint
a liguidation committee to obtain its rights and fulfill its obligations in addition to determine, count expected its
money, assets and sell it and then divided its rights to their shareholders. The liguidation period was determined
to be one year starting from the date of amended the commercial register.

At the end of each year, the company’s management prepares an impairment study for its investments in

subsidiaries based on the business operation of each subsidiary.

Statement of compliance:

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance to the Egyptian Accounting Standards
“EAS” as issued by the Minister of Investment’'s Decree No. 110 of 2015 as amended by the Minister of
Investment Decree No. 69 of 2019 and the applicable Egyptian laws and regulations. The Egyptian Accounting
Standards require referral to the International Financial Reporting Standards “IFRS”, where no specific Egyptian

Accounting Standard or legal requirements exists to address certain types of events and transactions and their
treatment.

Bases of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

The cansolidated financial statements have been prepared an the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation
of financial instruments, which are measured at fair value or amortized cost as appropriate.

Note no. (5) of notes of the consolidated financial statements includes statement of the mast important

accounting policies applied for the year presented.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions to determine the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that cannot he clearly measured
through other sources.

These estimates and associated assumptions are hased on management’s historical experience as well as other
relevant factors. Actual results may differ from these estimates, therefore the estimates used to determine these
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Adjustments resulting from a revision to accounting estimates
are recognized in the peried in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the

period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Dice Ready-Made Garments S.A.E (Dice for Sport and Casual Wear) 2
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023



Translation of notes to the consolidated Financial Statements
Criginally Issued in Arabic

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements and estimates practiced by management in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies, and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the

consalidated financial statements:

Revenue recognition

In making judgment, management considered the detailed criteria far revenue recognition from sale of goods
and render of services, in particular, whether the Group companies have transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods (Note 5G), and the management is satisfied that the transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods during the year is appropriate, in conjunction with the

recognition of an appropriate provision for the related costs.

Critical accounting judgements and Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives of tangible assets

The net book value of tangible assets amounted to EGP 589 100 449 as of December 31, 2023 compared to
EGP 480 069 550 as of December 31, 2022 (Note 6). The management determines the useful lives of the Property,
plant and eguipment based on the expected use of an asset, depreciation of the asset, and technological
development according to management previous experience in this industry. A revision in an asset's life
expectancy may affect its future depreciation which will be recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

Inventory write-downs

Inventories are written down to net realizable value, if lower than cost. Net realizable value is determined
according to the management's estimate of movement of obsolete or slow-moving items. Total value of
inventory write-downs amounted to EGP 4 376 017 as of December 31, 2023, compared to EGP 4 376 017 as of
December 31, 2022 (Note 9).

Expected Credit Loss and impairment of accounts receivable and other debit balances.

Expected credit loss is recognized for the purpose of recording potential losses arising from events, such as
default of certain clients. The carrying amount of impairment lass recognized on receivahles and other debtors
as of December 31, 2023 amounted to EGP 47 311 903 and EGP 7 107 126 as of December 31, 2022 compared
to EGP 39309 815 and EGP 6 139 081 Notes (10, 12). In determining the losses to be recognized, several factors
are considered, including aging of receivables’ balances, the current clients’ credit rating, and previous
experience in write-off of doubtful debts. The level of debts written-off and / or impaired may exceed
expectations, if the actual financial position of clients and other parties is worse than what was originally

expected.

Provisions

Provisions for contingent liabilities amounted to EGP 55 347 518 as of December 31, 2023 compared to
EGP 41415237 as of December 31, 2022 (Note 14). These provisions are related to expected claims from certain
authorities and parties related to the company's operations. Such claims cannot be reliably measured, so

estimated amounts can differ in the future.

Goadwill

The Group tests goodwill for impairment annually, or on a regular basis, if there are indications that goodwill has
been impaired. The impairment in goodwill is amounted to EGP 9 428 315 as of December 31, 2023 which
represents the full value of the goodwill refer to Note (8) as the net book value is nil as of December 31, 2023
and to determine the impairment, the recoverable amount of cash-generating units relating to goodwill is
calculated using the value in use method. The main assumptions used in calculating the value in use relate to
discount rates, expected changes in selling prices and direct costs. Management estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market estimates of the time value of money and the risks associated with these

cash-generating units.

Dice Ready-Made Garments 5.A.E (Dice for Sport and Casual Wear) ' 3
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Far the year ended December 31, 2023



Translation of nates to the consolidated Financial Statements
Originally Issued in Arabic

Deferred tax

The assessment of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is based on management's judgment. Deferred tax
assets are recognized only if, they are probable to be utilized. Deferred tax assets arising from tax losses carried
forward is recognized to the extent that it is probable that a future taxable profit will be sufficient, against which
those carried forward losses can be utilized. Estimation is based on variable factors, such as future operating
results. If a difference is identified between the actual and estimated amount of the asset, this may reduce it to
the extent to which sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow the deferred tax asset tc be
recovered. As of December 31, 2023, deferred tax liabilities amounted to EGP 46 565 949 compared to

EGP 36 627 777 as of December 31, 2022 (Note 23).

Significant accounting policies
Significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the Group's consalidated financial statements are

presented as follows:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of the Parent Company and
the companies that are controlled by the Parent Company (its subsidiaries). Control is presumed to exist when
the Parent Company has power over the investee, is exposed to, or has rights in variable returns as a result of its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. The Parent Company
reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.
When a Parent Company's share is less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has the power over
the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it a practical ability to direct the related activities of
the investee unilaterally. The Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power over that investee,
including:
- Voting rights held by the Parent Company compared to the size and allocation of voting rights held by
other parties.
- Potential voting rights held by the Parent Company, compared to those held by other parties.
- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
- Any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the Parent Company has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at decision-making times, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ previous meetings.

Business Combination of a subsidiary starts from the date on which the Parent Company obtains control aver
the subsidiary, and the consolidation ceases to exist when the Parent Company loses control aver the subsidiary.
Accordingly, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Comprehensive Income for the year include
the income and expenses of the subsidiary from the date on which the Parent Company obtains control until the
date on which the Parent Company loses control over the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each other comprehensive income item is attributable to the shareholders of the Parent
Company and non-controlling interests, even if total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries in this manner
results in a negative balance of the non-controlling interests (deficit).

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of a Group entity to bring its accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to intra-group transactions are eliminated

on cansolidation of the financial statements.
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Business combination

Business combinations (acquisitions) are accounted for using the acquisition methed. The consideration
transferred in a business combination transaction is measured at fair value, which is calculated on the basis of
the total fair values at the date of acquisition of the assets transferred from the Group and the liabilities incurred
by the Group in favour of the former owners of the acquire as well as the equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control over the acquire. Costs associated with an acquisition are usually recagnized in profit or

loss as incurred.

On the acquisition date, the assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognized at fair value on that date
except for:

« Deferred tax assets, liabilities or assets relating to employee benefit agreements are recognized and measured
respectively in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards Na. 24, "Income Taxes" and No. 38 "Employee
Benefits".

» Liability or equity instruments related to payment agreements based on the acquirer’s shares - or those related
to share-based payment agreements, the purpose of which is to replace the payment agreements based on the
acquirer’s shares - are measured at the date of acquisition in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standard
No. 39 "Share-Based Payments".

¢ Assets (or disposal current groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. 32 "Long-term assets held for sale and discontinued cperations" where they are measured in

accordance with that standard.

Gaoodwill is measured on the basis that it represents the increase in the total of the consideration transferred,
any rights of the non-controlling interest in the acquire and the fair value of the acquirer’s interest in the

acquirer's equity before the date of acquisition (if any) Assets acquired and liabilities incurred at the date of

acquisitian.

If, after the revaluation, the net assets acquired and liahilities incurred exceed the total of the transferred
consideration, any rights of the non-controlling interests in the acquire and the fair value of the acquirer's
interest in the acquirer’s equity prior to the date of acquisition If any), then such increase is recognized directly

in prafit or loss for the year as a gain from the purchase price.

And as of non-controlling interests that represent current equity interests and entitle their holders to the right
to a proportionate share of the net assets of an enterprise if they are liquidated, they can be measured at the
initial recognition either at fair value or in the proportionate share of non-controlling interests in the recognized
values of the acquirer’s net assets The measurement basis for each acquisition transaction is selected separately.
Other types of non-contralling interests are measured either at fair value or on a specific basis in an Egyptian

Accounting Standard to which they apply.

When the consideration transferred from the group - in a business combination transaction - consists of assets
or liabilities arising from a conditional agreement, the contingent consideration is measured at fair value on the
date of acquisition and is included as part of the consideration transferred in the business combination. If any
changes occur - from those that meet the definition of adjustments to the measurement period - in the fair value
of the contingent consideration, then those changes are adjusted retroactively against goodwill adjustment.
Adjustments to the measurement period are defined as adjustments arising from the availability of additional
information during the measurement period (which cannot exceed twelve months from the date cf acquisition)

of facts and events that existed on the date of acquisition.
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As for the changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration, which de not meet the definition of the
adjustment period, the subsequent accounting depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. If the
contingent liability is reversed as equity, it is not re-measured in subsequent periods and subsequent adjustment
is accounted for under equity. For a conditional consideration classified as an asset or a financial liability, it is
premeasured in subsequent periods in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 26 or the Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. 28 "Provisions for contingent liabilities and contingent assets', with corresponding gain
or loss recognized in profit or loss.

For a business combination that is achieved in a step acquisition, the Group's interest in the acquirer’s equity is
premeasured at fair value on the date of acquisition (at the date that the Group obtains control) and the gain or

loss arising, if any, Profit or loss.

For the amounts that have arisen from the Group's interest in the acquire - in the periods prior to the acquisition
date, previously recognized in other comprehensive income, they are reclassified to profit or loss when it is
appropriate to follow that treatment if that share is eliminated.

Investments in subsidiaries
Changes in the Group's interest in its subsidiaries that do nat result in loss of control are accounted for as equity

transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's rights and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
changes in their relative share in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amounts to which the rights of
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration received or paid directly to the

equity is recognized and attributed to owners of the holding Company.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between:

1. The fair value of the consideration received or receivable plus the fair value of the remaining portion of
retained earnings

2. The carrying amount of the subsidiary's assets (including goodwill) and their liabilities and any non-controlling
interest.

When control is lost over a subsidiary that has an asset which was recorded at a revaluation or fair value, and
the cumulative gain or loss recognized at other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income are accounted for and accumulated in equity, as if the
parent Company had disposed of such assets directly (for example, its inclusion in profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings as defined in the relevant Egyptian Accounting Standards for related financial
reporting).

The fair value of the portion of the investment held in that subsidiary (formerly subsidiary) at the date of loss of
control is either the fair value at initial recognition for subsequent accounting for investment in accordance with
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 26 “Financial Instruments” or as the cost upon initial recognition of an

investment in a related Company or a Company under joint control as appropriate.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group determines whether there are indicators of impairment in all its
financial assets, other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are impaired where there is an objective evidence that, because of one or more events that

occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment

have been impacted.
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The impairment loss of each financial asset carried at amortized cost, represents the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the ariginal effective
interest rate of that financial asset.

The carrying amount of all financial assets is directly reduced by the impairment losses, except for the
impairment in trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced using an allowance account. When a
receivable’s balance is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.

With the exception of Available for Sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related cbjectively to an event occurring after an
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

As for equity instruments classified as available-for-sale investments for which impairment losses were
previously recognized in the statement of profits or losses, is not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.
Any subsequent appreciation in the value of such investments is recognized directly through equity.

E. Property, plant and equipment, and its depreciation
Property, plant and equipment presented in the financial position statement, are measured at historical cost,
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, except for land, which is stated at cost less impairment

losses. Cost includes all expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recagnized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits asscciated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred. Gains and losses arising on disposals are determined
as the difference between net sales proceeds and carrying amount of an asset and is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Projects under construction for production, or administrative purposes are carried at cost less any impairment
losses, if any, in addition to the professional fees.

Depreciation of such assets commences when these assets are ready for their intended use, following the same
depreciation basis used for other property, plant and equipment items.

Depreciation is recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss so as to write-off the cost of assets,
less salvage value (other than land and projects under construction) over their estimated useful lives and
following the straight-line method. At each reporting period useful lives, salvage values and depreciation
method are being reviewed, provided that effect of changes is accounted for prospectively.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment other than projects under construction and land is using the
straight-line method over the expected useful lives of such assets as follows:

Assets categories Estimated useful lives in years Depreciation rates
Buildings and constructions 50 2%

5 years or contract duration

Furniture and decorations R e e 20%

Machinery and equipment 4: 8 12.5%: 25%

Vehicles and transpartation 4:6.7 15%: 25%

Furniture and office tools 4:16.7 6%: 25%
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Project under construction
Projects under construction are recorded at cost less any decrease in their book value and the cost of these

projects includes all costs related to the acquisition of the asset until they are usable then a depreciation account
for those assets starts according to the principles used in the depreciation of fixed assets. Projects under
construction are charged at the cost of new projects and purchased equipment that has not yet been used.

Revenue from sale of goods

Sales of Goods
An entity recognizes allocated transaction price (excluding the estimated limited variable consideration) as
revenue when control is passed, either over time or at a point in time. The transaction price is the amount to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for the transfer of goods and services, except for amounts
collected on behalf of third-parties (e.g. VAT). When making this determination, an entity will consider past
customary business practices. Contract may include fixed or variable fees ar both.
A contract with a customer will be within the scope of this standard only if all the following conditions are met:
a. The cantract has been approved by the parties to the contract (Written, Oral or according to other usual
trades practices) and are cbligated to perform their obligations.
b. Each party’s rights in relation to the goods or services to be transferred can be identified;
The payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred can be identified;
d. The contract has cammercial substance (It is expected that the risks are change or the time or the
amount of future cash flows of the entity as a result of the contract) and;
It is probable that the consideration to which the entity is entitled to in exchange for the goaods or
services will be collected. To evaluate the probability of that the consideration will be recoverable, an
entity must consider the customer’s ahility and intention to pay the considerations when due. The
consideration attributable to an entity might be less than the price agreed in the contract in cases of
variable consideration as the entity might allow for discounts given to the customers.

Governmental Grants- Export support fund

Governmental grants are receivable as compensation for expenses ar losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financizal support to any the Companies of the Group, with no future related costs. Such
grants are recognized as other income in the statement of profit or loss based on the accrual basis. Recognition

of grants is on gross basis, without deduction of stamps or governmental fees associated with a grant, such costs
are included the general and administrative expenses during the same period when the grant is received and

based on approvals of official parties..

Credit interest
Credit interest is accrued on a timely basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate

applicable until maturity.

Other income
Other operating incame is recognized on an accrual basis.

Foreign currencies transactions

The Egyptian Pound has been designated as the Group functional and presentation currency, being the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Group incurs its cash inflows and outflows. Transactions in
currencies other than Egyptian pounds are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At each Reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated to Egyptian pounds at the rates prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences are
recognized in the statement of profits or losses in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not revaluated.
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Taxation

Income tax

Taxation is determined according to the Egyptian Income Tax Law no.91 of 2005 and its amendments and
executive legislation. Provisions are formed tc meet potential tax claims according to the results of the
examination and study prepared hy the Company's management for this purpose. Income tax expense
represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The taxable profit for the year is determined hased on profit of the year. The Company's tax liabilities for the
year are calculated using the enacted tax rates applicable at the date of the financial statements.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on temporary differences arising between the assets and

liabilities tax basis as set by the Egyptian Tax Law and its executive regulations, and their carrying amounts as per
the accounting standards used in the preparation of the financial statements. Accordingly, during each reporting
period, an estimated incame tax expense is recagnized in the profit or loss that represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax. Current tax payable is calculated based on taxahble profit of the year as
determined in accordance with applicable local laws and regulations using tax rates enacted by the financial
position date. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected te apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted by the date of the
financial statements. Income tax is recognized in the profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the income tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized (resulted from all taxable temporary differences in the future)
and deferred tax assets are recognized unless there is strong possibility that those assets could be used to reduce
future tax profits or possibility of sufficient tax profits in the future. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are accounted for using the methad and are reported in the statement of financial position as non-current assets
and liabilities.

Inventaries

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value at each financial position date. Costs of
inventories costs are accounted for using the weighted average method.

The costs of inventories are determined as follows:

Raw materials (Main, auxiliary and spare parts)
Cost is determined by using the weighted average method in pricing the outgoing from warehouses.

Woaork in progress

Costincurred for each process hased on production orders, including fixed and variable overhead costs incurred
according to the percentage of completion of finished products at each production process.

Export finished goods

Cost is calculated based on the average cost of materials used during the year in addition to direct and indirect

costs.

Retail finished goods

The cost is calculated based on reducing the selling price of the inventary at an appropriate profit margin. In
determining this percentage, inventory items which their sales prices are reduced below the original selling price
are considered. An average margin of profit is determined for each retail segment.

Consignment goods

Cansignment goods includes all of the production raw materials (main, auxiliary and spare parts), work in
progress production, finished production, export, and finished production that is divided and the cost is
calculated for each item according to the nature of the item and the status of the stock according to the method
of assigning each of the aforementioned warehouse items.
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Impairment in the Non- financial assets:
At the end of each reporting period, the Group management reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial

assets, other than inventory, to determine whether there are indications of impairment. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of each asset individually for determining impairment losses.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, Group’s assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units. If impracticable, otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Far tangible and intangible assets "art collections" which have no specific useful life or are not yet ready for use,
an annual test for impairment is performed or if there is an indication that such assets are impaired.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell or
value in use,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows of an asset or a cash-generating unit are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, which was recognized in previous periods, the carrying
amount of the asset (ar cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent the revised estimate does not exceed what the carrying amount would have been determined had
the impairment loss not been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources from the Company will be required ta settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the financial statements date, taking into consideration the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows. Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases
in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as

finance cost.

Legal cases

The company may be a plaintiff or defendant in various cases before the courts. These cases are carefully
followed up by the company’s management and its legal consultant, and they are evaluated periodically. The
company does nat expect to have a material impact on the company’s financial statements. When these cases
are likely to result in financial obligations on the company, a provision is recognized in the consolidated financial

statements Independent in accardance with the previous paragraph (Note 14).

Short-term employees’ benefits
Salaries, wages, paid annual leaves, sick leave, bonuses, and other non-monetary benefits are recognized on

accrual basis and expensed in the financial period in which the associated services are rendered by the employees
to the Group.
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N. Dividends’ distribution
Dividends declared to the shareholders, Board of Directors and employees are recognized as
a liability in the separate financial statements in the period in which these dividends have been approved by the

Group's sharehaolders.

Employees’ profit share

In accordance with the Company's article of association, the Company pays 10% of its dividends distribution
approved by the shareholders general assembly meeting to its employees, after deducting legal reserves, which
should not exceed their total annual wages. Employees' profit sharing is recognized as profits distribution in the
statement of changes in shareholders' equity and as a liability during the period in which the shareholders
approve such distributions. Since the legal obligation to distribute dividends to the Company’s employees is a
full discreet right of the shareholders’ general assembly, the Company does not recognise any liability for the
employees’ share in undistributed profits.

Q. Borrowings and credit facilities
Borrowings and credit facilities obtained by the Group are initially recognized at the fair of the consideration
received; net of transaction costs incurred. Barrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost, any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss over the tenor of horrowings using the effective interest method.

P. Lease assets contracts

Sale and leaseback transactions
If the leased seller (transfers an asset to another entity) the leased purchaser and leases back this asset from the

leased purchaser, then both the leased seller and the leased purchaser must account for the transfer contract
and the lease contract according to the following:

Evaluate whether the asset transfer is a sale

The company applies the necessary requirements to determine when the performance obligation in Egyptian
Accounting Standard (No. 48) is fulfilled.

Revenue from contracts with customers to determine whether the transfer of the asset is accounted for as a sale
of that asset.

Asset transfer represents a sale
If the transfer of the asset by the leased seller fulfils the requirements mentioned in Egyptian Accounting
Standard (48) Revenue from customer contracts ta be accounted for as a sale of the asset;

The leaseholder must measure the “"usufruct” asset resulting from the leaseback by the portion of the previous
book value of the asset related to the usufruct that is retained by the leaseholder seller. Accordingly, the lessee
seller must recognize only the amount of any profit or loss related to the transferred rights of the purchasing

lessor.

The lessor buyer must account for the purchase of the asset by applying the standards applicable to it, and
accounting for the lease contract by applying the lessor accounting requirements in this standard.

If the fair value of the consideration to sell the asset is not equal to the fair value of the asset, or if the lease
payments are not in accordance with market prices, the entity must make the following adjustments to measure
the sale proceeds at fair value:

A- Any deficiency in market conditions must be accounted for as an advance of rental payments.

Any increase in market conditions must be accounted for as additional financing provided by the leased buyer to
the leased seller.

An entity should measure any adjustment that may be required on the basis of what can be readily identified for
the following:

The difference between the fair value of the consideration to sell and the fair value of the asset.

The difference between the present value of the contractual payments of the lease and the present value of the
lease payments at market rates.
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Lease contracts in which the company is a lessee
At the beginning of the lease contract, the original “usufruct” and the commitment of the lease contract shall be

recognized. However, the company may not apply this, whether far short-term leases or lease contracts in which
the underlying asset of the contract has a low value, and in this case the lease payments associated with these
are recognized. Rents as an expense either on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease or another regular
basis. Another regular basis would be applied if that basis was more representative of the pattern of benefit as

a lessee.

The initial measurement of the "Right of use" asset:

The cost of a "right of use" asset consists of;

(A) The first measurement amount of the lease obligation, at the present value of unpaid lease payments on that
date. Lease payments are deducted using the interest rate implicit in the lease agreement if that rate can be

easily determined. If it is not possible to determine that rate, the lessee must use the interest rate on the
additional borrowing of the lessee.

(B) Any lease payments made on or before the commencement date of the lease less any lease incentives
received,

(C) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee,

(D) An estimate of the costs that the lessee will incur in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, returning
the site in which the asset is located to the original state or returning the asset to the reguired condition in

accordance with the terms and conditions of the lease contract, unless those costs will be incurred to produce

the inventory. The lessee incurs obligations for those costs, either at the start date of the lease contract or

because of using the underlying asset during a specific period.

Subsequent measurement of the "Right of use" asset:
After the start date of the lease contract, the “right of use” asset is measured. A cost model is applied where the

"right of use” asset is measured at cost:
(A) minus any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
(8) As amended by any re-measurement of the lease chligation.

The first measure of a lease obligation

At the starting date of the lease, the |lease obligation is measured at the present value of unpaid lease payments
on that date. Lease payments are deducted using the interest rate implicit in the lease agreement if that rate can
be easily determined. If this rate cannot be determined easily, the lessee must use the incremental borrowing

rate of the company as lessee.

Subsequent measurement of the lease obligation

After the start date of the lease agreement, the following shall be done:

(A) An increase in the carrying amount of the obligation to reflect the interest on the lease obligation.

(B) Reducing the carrying amount of the obligation to reflect lease payments,

(C) Re-measure the carrying amount of the obligation to reflect any revaluation or amendments to the lease
contract or to reflect fixed lease payments in their modified substance.

The right of use asset and leasehold obligations are presented in the financial position separately from other

assets and liabilities.
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Leasing contracts involve the lessee maintaining and insuring the leased asset. The lease agreement does not

include any arrangements for transferring ownership at the end of the lease period.

As for a contract that involves a leasing component with one or more leasing or non-leasing component (if any),
the consideration is allocated in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the independent
propartional price of the leasing component and the total independent price of the non-leasing component. As
a practical means, and within the scope of what the standard permits, the company, as a lessee, can choose
according to the category of the underlying asset of the contract not to separate the non-rental components
from the rental components, and then account for each rental component and any accompanying non-lease

components as a single rental component.

Asset transfer is not a sale

If the transfer of the asset by the tenant seller does not meet the requirements of Egyptian Accounting Standard
No. (48), the accountant far it is considered a sale of the asset:

The lessee must continue to recognize the transferred asset, and it must acknowledge a financial liability equal
to the transfer proceeds. And he must account for the financial commitment by applying the Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. (47).

Finance cost
Finance cost directly related to construction of the asset is capitalized for that asset, This finance cost is

capitalized within the cost of the asset when it is expected that it will create future economic benefits for the
Company and there is an ability to measure the cost reliably. Other finance costs are an expense that is incurred
in the period in which companies of the Group incurred that cost.

When borrowing is generally undertaken and the borrowed funds are used in the acquisition of a qualifying asset
to bear the borrowing cost, the amount of the finance cost that can be capitalized is determined using a
capitalization rate on the expenditure for that asset. This rate is calculated on the basis of the weighted average
cost of borrowing the facility for the existing loans during the period, after excluding the loans that were
concluded specifically for the purpose of acquiring a stand-alone asset eligible to bear the cost of finance. The
value of the finance cost capitalized during a period shall not exceed the value of the finance cost incurred during
that period.

When the book value or the expected total cost of the qualifying asset exceeds the value that can be recovered
from it or its net sales value, then that increase is reduced or excluded from the hook value in accardance with
the requirements of other standards, and in certain circumstances, the value of reduction or disposal is raised

again on the value Carrying the asset in accordance with those other criteria.

Credit banks
Credit banks represent the value of settlements of checks due and issued by the Company on the date of the

financial pasitian an the debit bank accounts.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the financial pasition when the Company becomes a

party to the contractual provisians of the instrument,

Initial recognition
Accounts receivable, debtors and other debit balances are recognized on the date as they arise. Financial assets
and liabilities are recognized when the entity is involved in the contractual terms of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs attributable to the accusation or issuance of the instrument. Accounts receivable, debtors and
other debit balances that do not involve a significant finance element are measured initially at transaction costs.
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Translation of notes to the consolidated Financial Statements
Originally Issved in Arabic

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified either by: amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (e.g. investments in bonds) or fair value through profit or loss (e.g. investments in
securities). Classification of financial assets cannot be changed unless the company’s business model had been
changed, in this case all affected financial assets should be reclassified at the beginning of the first reported
period right after the change in business model.

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when they satisfy the following conditions, unless they are not
classified as at fair value through profit or loss:
e The objective of the entity's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash
flows;
s The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through profit ar loss when they satisfy the following
conditions, unless they are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss:
e The objective of the entity's business model that aim to collect the contractual cash flows and sell
financial assets;
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
On initial recognition of investments in securities not held for trading, the entity might permanently decide to
disclose the subsequent changes in fair value within other camprehensive income. The decision is taken for each
investment separately.
All financial assets that are not classified as at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income as stated above, are classified as at fair value through profit or loss, this also include derivatives. On initial
recognition, the entity might permanently decide that the financial asset that do not satisfy the conditions
required to be classified as at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income to be classified
as at fair value through profit or loss if this classification could substantially end or reduce the accounting
inconsistency that could be arise if it was not classified otherwise.

Financial assets — business model evaluation
The entity evaluates the purpose from a business model that aim to hold a portfolio of financial assets, this helps
ta achieve a better way of business management and information delivery to management. Provided information

include:

e Announced policies and objectives and how to activate these policies practically. This involves
management strategy for revenue derived from the contractual returns, including a pre-determined
interest rate, and synchronization of financial assets term with the term of any related financial liabilities
or the expected cash outflow or cash flow derived from disposal of assets;

e Evaluate the performance of the portfolio and repart this to the entity’s management;
s  Risks that have effects of the performance of the business model and how these risks are managed;

2 Compensations for commercial managers for example, unless the compensation is calculated on the
basis of fair value of managed assets or the collected contractual cash flows; and

e  Frequency, size and timing of financial assets disposals on the past, the reasons behind these sales and
forecasted sales in the future.

Transferring financial assets to third parties through transactions that are satisfy derecognition criteria are not
considered as sales for this purpose, and the entity has to continue recognize these assets.

Financial assets held for trading that are managed and evaluated on fair value basis are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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Translation of notes to the consolidoted Financiai Statements
Originally Issued in Arabic

Financial assets — evaluation of whether contractual cash flows represent solely principal payments and

interest

For the purposes of this evaluation, principal is known as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
Interest is the financial consideration of time value for money and credit risks related to the principal due within
a pre-determined period of time, in addition to other basic risks and lending costs (e.g. liquidity risks and
administration costs) and profit margin.

When evaluating whether the contractual cash flows are solely involving the principal and interest payments,
the entity considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This involves evaluating whether contractual terms
include conditions that might change timing or value of contractual cash flows in case of the conditions are not
satisfied. When performing this evaluation, the entity considers the following:

e Probable events that could change value or timing of the contractual cash flows;

s Conditions that could change contractual interest rate, including variable rate conditions;

e Advance payment and financing period terms; and

= Conditions that restrict the group’s ability to collect contractual cash flows (e.g. no-return conditions).

Advance payment conditions are compatihle with principal payments and interest only if advance payment value
represents material unpaid principal payments and interest due on principal, which might include additional
reasonable compensation to end the contract early. In addition, as for the financial assets acquired with discount
or premium on nominal value, the condition that allow or require the advance payment to be in a value that
represent contractual nominal value in addition to contractual interest due, which could include an additional
reasonable compensation for early settlement, treated as compatible with this principle if the fair value for
advance payment is not material on initial recognition.

Financial assets — subsequent measurement and profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assels are measured subsequently at fair value. Profit or loss, including interest income and dividends are
recognized through profit or loss.
Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is reduced by
impairmentlosses. Interest income, foreign exchange profit or loss and impairment are recognized through profit
or loss, Derecognition profits or losses are recognized through profit or loss.

Investments in debt at fair value through other comprehensive income

These assets are measured at fair value. Interest income is calculated using effective interest rate method,
foreign exchange profit or loss and impairment are recognized through profit or loss. Other profit or loss
elements are recognized through other comprehensive income. On derecognition, accumulated profit or losses
are recycled from other comprehensive incame to profit or lass.

These assets are measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized through profit or loss unless it was clearly
represent part of investment cost. Other profit or losses are recognized in other comprehensive incame and
never recycled to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — classification, subsequent measurement and profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at amortized cost or at fair value through profit or loss. A financial liability is
classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it was classified as held for trading, a derivative or was classified
at this basis on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at fair value through profit or loss, profit or loss including interest expenses are
recognized through profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using
effective interest rate method, Interest expenses and foreign exchange profit or losses are recognized threugh
profit or loss. any profit or loss from derecognition are recognized through profit or lass.
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Tronstation of notes to the consolidated Financial Statements
Criginally fssved in Arebic

Derecognition

Financial assets

An entity derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual right to cash flows for the financial asset is
getting expired, or when the group transfers the contractual rights to cash flows through a transaction that
actually transfers all risks and rewards of the financial asset, or through a transaction in which the entity does
not transfer or keep risks and rewards of the financial asset, but it does not keep control on the financial asset.

Transferred assets are not derecognized if the entity has agreed transactions to transfer assets recognized
through statement of financial position but it keeps all or most of the risks and rewards from the transferred

assets.

Financial liabilities

An entity derecognizes a financial liability when the related contractual liabilities have been settled, cancelled or
expired. An entity derecognizes a financial liability also when its terms have been amended and the cash outflow
froam the amended liability is materially different, in this case a new financial liability is recognized based on the

amended terms of fair value.

When a financial liability is derecognized, the difference between written off net book value and settlement paid,
including any transferred non-cash assets or contingent liabilities, is recognized through prafit or loss.

Clearing
Financial assets and financial liabilities are cleared, net amount is presented in the statement of financial position,

only when the entity has an enforceable right to clear these amounts and the entity wants whether to settle the
transactions based on the net amount ar synchronize the collection of assets and settlement of liabilities.

Impairment of assets

Non-derivative financial assets

Financial instruments and contracts’ assets

The entity recognizes a provision for expected credit losses from:
e  Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

e Debtinstruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;
e Contracts” assets.

The entity measures expected credit lasses provisions from rental income receivable which is disclosed within
accounts receivable, debtors and other debit balances.

The entity measures expected credit losses provision for instrument’s lifetime, with exception to the following
items where the losses provision is measured based on equivalent 12-manth expected credit losses:
e Debt instruments that involve low credit risk as of the reporting date; and
e Other debt instruments and bank balances in which the related credit risks have been not materially
increased since initial recognition (e.g. default risks that fall over the expected life time of the financial
instrument).
The entity measures losses provision for accounts receivable and debtors including rentals income receivable
and contracts assets based on the lifetime expected credit losses for the instrument.
When determining whether the credit risks of a financial instrument have been increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, an entity considers reasonable and supportive
information that is relevant and available without cost or extensive effort and that also involve analysis and
quantitative and qualitative information based on previous experience and credit rating that is based on forward-

looking information.
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Transiation of notes to the consolidated Finoncial Statements
Originally issued in Arabic

A financial asset will be considered in a default position when:

e It is not probable that customers and debtors fulfill their credit obligations to the entity without the
need to take actions like restrict the warranty deposit (if any); or

e The financial asset is due within a period over 180 days.
Expected credit losses over the instrument’s lifetime represent the losses that are resulted from all probable
default evenls that are expected to occur over the financial instrument’s lifetime. Expected credit losses over
12-manths represent the proportion of credit losses that are resulted from default events that are probable to
occur within 12-month period after reporting date (or within a shorter periad if the instrument’s expected
lifetime is less than 12 months).
The maximum period that should be considered when estimating expected credit losses represents the
maximum contracted period in which the entity is exposed to credit risks.

Measuring expected credit losses

Expected credit losses represent the weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at present
value of all cash defaults (i.e. the difference between cash inflows due to the entity according to the entity and
cash inflows that the entity expects to obtain). Expected credit losses are reduced using the effective interest
rate of the financial asset.

Financial assets exposed to credit reduction

The entity determines, at reporting date, whether the financial assets recorded at amortized cost and debt
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income have been exposed to credit reduction.
A financial asset is exposed to credit reduction when one or more events occur that have negative impact on

future cash flows of the financial asset.

The objective evidence that a financial asset is exposed to credit reduction include the following:
e A severe financial crisis for the debtor;
e Breach of the contract, such as defaulting on payment;
e Loan ar custody rescheduling based on conditions that would not be accepted by the entity in another
circumstances; or
e It is probable that the debtor is exposed to bankruptcy or another rescheduling plans.
Presentation of expected credit losses in the statement of financial position
A provision for losses is formed for the financial assets measured at amortized cost and deducted from total bock

value of the assets. Regarding debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, a
provision for losses is charged on profit or loss and recognized in other comprehensive income.

Write-off

Total net book value of the financial asset is written-off when the entity has no reasonable expectations that the
full or part of the financial asset’s value is recoverable.

The entity expects that a significant proportion of written-off amounts are irrecoverable. However, written-off
financial assets might still subject to executive activities in order to comply with the entity’s procedures to
recover the amounts due.

Non-financial assets
At reporting date, the entity reviews non-financial assets’ net book value to check whether they are exposed to
any indications for impairment. In such indications exist, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

For the purposes of impairment study, assets are aggregated in the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows resulted from continues use of it, the group of assets should be widely independent from cash inflows
generated by assets or other cash generating units.

The recoverable value of an asset or a cash generating unit represents value in use or fair value less selling costs,
whichever greater. When evaluating value in use, estimated future cash flows are reduced to the value in use
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market valuation for time value of money and risks related to
the asset or the cash generating unit.
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Translation of notes to the cansolidated Financial Statements
Originally issued in Arabic

Impairment losses are recognized when the hook value of the asset or related cash generating unit is greater
than its recoverable value, Impairment losses are recognized through profit or loss. Impairment losses are
allocated, in the first place, to reduce the book value of any goodwill related to the cash generating unit, then to
reduce other cash generating unit's assets on a pro-rata basis.

Impairment losses are reversed to the extent that the asset’s book value does not exceed the book value that
was to be determined, after depreciation or amortization, as if the impairment losses had not been recognized

in the first place.

Effective interest rate method
Effective interest rate method is a method to calculate the amortized cost of the debt instrument and used for

distributing interest income over a pre-determined period. Effective interest rate is the rate that used to discount
expected future cash inflows (including all paid charges or paints received, which form an integral part of
effective interest rate, and transaction costs ar any other premium or discounts) over the expected lifetime of
the instrument, or over a shorter period if appropriate, so that specifically reach the net book value of the asset
since initial recognition.

Income from debt instruments that subsequently measured at amortized cost are recognized in prafit or loss
using effective interest rate approach, and are presented within finance income.

Cash and cash eguivalent
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, current accounts at banks, and term depasits that are readily

convertible to determined amounts of cash.

Receivables
Receivables are not interest-bearing and are stated at their nominal value. Receivables are reduced by

appropriate allowances for estimated doubtful debts.

Accounts payable
Payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

. Legal reserve
In accordance with the Companies Law no. 159 of 1981 and The Group's Articles of Incorporation, 5% of the

annual net income is transferred to the legal reserve, until the balance of reserve reaches 50% of issued capital.

This reserve is not subjected te dividends’ distribution.

Cash flow statement
The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method. For the purpose of preparing the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks, banks current accounts and term deposits which

their maturity do not exceed 3 months.

Earning per share
The basic and diluted earning per share is disclosed in the statements of profit or loss. Basic, and diluted earning

per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary sharehalders of the Group by the
weighted average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the period. To determine the net profit for the
ordinary shareholders, the employees profit share, and the remuneration of the Board of Directors are deducted.

Fair value estimations

In the application of The Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note (4), The Group’s management
are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the fair value of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in an active
market is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques that are based on market conditions

existing at the date of the consclidated financial statements.
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Translation of notes to the consolidated Financial Statermenis

Criginally Issued in Arabic

AA, Transactions with related parties

The related parties are represented in the direct or indirect relationships that arise between the Company and
its subsidiary or common interest companies, in addition to the relationship that arises between the Company
and the basic members of the higher management in the entity, or those workers in the Company and have a
strong influence an decision-making. Directly or indirectly, transactions with related parties are launched on all
pperations, transactions and exchange of resources, services and obligations that arise between the Company

and these parties.

The transactions with related parties are done with the same basis as dealing with others in accordance with

market prices which are approved by the General Assembly through netting contracts.
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Translation of notes to the consolidated Financial Statements
Qriqinally Issued in Arabic

7. Projects under construction

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
EGP EGP
Machinery and construction work 20 395 493 16 247 476
Land 5 370 146 5370 146
25 765 639 _ 21617 622
8. Goodwill
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
EGP EGP
Goodwill 9428 315 5428 315
Impairment in goodwill (9 428 315) (9 428 315)

The goodwill resulted from the acquisition of Egyptian Company for Knitting and Ready-made by the Company

as follows:
Company hame Acquisition The Group’s sharesin  Direct and indirect December 31, 2023
date the subsidiary’s net acquisition cost
assets *
EGP EGP EGP

Egypti itti

gyptian For Kntting & o505 04e 10 411 660 19 839 975 9428 315
Ready Made
Total Goodwill 9428 315

* The fair value of the net assets of the Company has been determined by the market value of the property, plant
and equipment in additian to the net book value of the Company’s net assets, as the fair value of the subsidiary
at the date of acquisition does not differ materially from its recorded amount at Company’s hooks.

The Group tests goodwill for impairment annually, or on a regular basis, if there are indications that goodwill has
been impaired.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units related to goodwill is calculated using the in-use method.
The key assumptions used in calculating value in use relate to discount rates, expected changes in selling prices
and direct costs. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash-generating units

The Company has recorded an impairment of goodwill, because of the Company’s’ inability to achieve the
expected profits from the date of acquisition.

9. Inventories (net)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Description EGP EGP
Work in progress and finished goods 544 128 807 511714 718
Raw materials 450 092 312 280 420 960
Spare parts 40 258 498 22979986
Packing materials 28 782 201 16281377
Inventary held with others 7 806 794 30330
Letter of credit to purchase goods - 8983671

1071 068 413 840411 042
Less: Write-down of inventories (Note 15) (4 376 017) (4376 017)

1 066 692 396 836 035 025
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10. Accounts and notes receivable (net)

Translation of notes to the consclidated Financial Staterments

Originally Issved in Arabic

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Description EGP EGP

Accounts receivable 632 922 022 464 460 891

Naotes receivable 128 874 581 100 900 425
761 796 603 565 361 316

Less: Expected credit loss recognized on accounts and
i - ! (47 311 903)

(39 309 815)

notes receivable (Nate 15)

11. Investment certificates

714 484 700 526 051 501

The halance of investment Certificates is amounted of 160 965 876 EGP, represented in the fair value of the

investment documents purchased from the Arab African Internaticnal Bank (Diamend) Investment Fund,
amounting to 1 300 875 certificates with an average price of EGP 123,74 per certificate as of December 31, 2023.

12. Debtors and other debit balances (net)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
(Amended)

Description EGP EGP
Advance to suppliers 73 831 459 91 336 605
Tax Autharity — withholding tax 43 127 165 46 063 683
Letters of guarantee — cash cover 37 393 103 18 130 168
Insurance held with others 16 807 362 13 241 747
Prepaid expenses 13 417 728 11 969 679
Tax Autharity - value added tax (previously sales tax) 11 721 492 9050213
Tax Autharity — advance payment 6212 094 4 250 633
Employees loan 755 367 677 824
Tax Authority - stamp tax 74 274 25331
Other debit balances o 4 963 797 4527 600

208 303 841 199 273 493
Less: Impairment loss recognized in other debit (7 107 126) (6 139 081)
balances (Note 15) _

201 196 715 193 134 412

13. Cash and bank balances

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Description EGP EGP

Cash an hand 12 215 396 11700 800

Current accounts at balances 141 834 038 96 601 503
154 049 434 108 302 303

For the purposes of cansclidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Description EGP EGP
Cash and cash equivalents balance 154 049 434 108 302 303
Less: credit banks (2 050 723) (2864 781)
151 998 711 105 437 522
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14. Provisions

Balance as of

January 1, 2023

Transiation of notes to the consolidated Financiaf Statements

Movement during the year

Originally Issued in Arabic

Balance as of

December 31, 2023

Description Formed Reversed Used
Pravisions 41415 237 15 340 042 -- (1407 761) 55 347 518
Total Provisions 41415 237 15 340 042 - (1 407 761) 55 347 518

* These provisions represent the amount that have been recognized as the best available estimates against the

required amount to settle the current obligation in the date of the Financial Position, These provisions relate ta

expected claims from some parties and autharities in connection with the company's activities.

15. Write-downs and impairment in assets values

Description
Balance as of

January 1, 2023

Movement during the year

EGP
Write-down of inventories (Note 9) 4376 017
Expected credit loss (Note 10) 39 309 815
Impairment in ather debit balances

6139 081
(Note 12)
Impairment in Goodwill (Note 8) 9428 315

16. Credit facilities

Description

Commercial International Bank
Qatar National Bank Al-Ahli
Arab African International Bank
Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank

Attijari Wafa Bank

Reversal of
Recorded in
previously
Profit or loss
recognized
EGP EGP
9517 803 (600 000)
968 045 --

December 31, 2023
EGP
507 102 225
364 690 932
223 240 273
87 320 020

Balance as of

December 31, 2023

Used
EGP EGP
- 4 376 017
(915 715) 47 311 903
-- 7 107 126
- 9428 315

December 31, 2022
EGP
267 047 154
254 750 396

342 468318
91 485 054
9082691

1182 353 450

964 843 613

* All credit facilities granted by all banks to the company are guaranteed by supply orders from external clients,

and the Company is committed to paying those obligations on a regular basis.
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17. Borrowings

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
EGP EGP

Qatar National Bank — Al Ahli

On November 26, 2017, The Company obtained a medium-term 64 777 459 89 707 075
loan in amount of USD 3 000 000 for the purpose of financing
and / or refinancing the purchase of machinery and equipment
to serve the Company’s operations. The duration of this loan is
5 years, including a one-year withdrawal period ending on
November 26, 2018. The principal amount of the loan is then
repaid on {16) sixteen equal quarterly instaliments the value of
each installment is USD 187 500. The first instaliment is due on
February 26, 2019. The second installment is due on May 26,
2019 and so on respectively, every three months until the
maturity of the sixteenth installment on November 26, 2022,
with an annual interest rate of 4.5% over the 6-month LIBOR
rate or the lending rate of the euro whichever is higher, in
addition to the commission of the highest debit balance by 0.1%
per month. The interest shall be paid in addition to the
commission of the highest debit balance on the amounts
withdraw per month for the duration of this contract, from the
date of use of this loan until the completion of repayment of the
loan from the principal, commissions, and others. Where the
(second party) requested the Bank (First Party) to increase the
loan amount to USD 4 Q00 000 only 4 million dollars or its
equivalent in other foreign currencies instead of only
UsD 3 000 000.

Also, within the expansions of the Company in its investment
activity, the Company obtained a medium-term loan of
USD 5 million on February 10, 2020 to partially finance by 66.7%
of the total purchasing amount of building land and Cairo
Cotton Center’s factory. The loan is repayable on seventeen (17)
equal quarterly installments of USD 294 118 starting February
10, 2021 for four years ending February 10, 2025 with an
interest of 3.5% in addition to SOFR rate or lending rate far euro
whichever is higher and commission an the highest debit
balance by 0.05% on monthly hasis as the loan has been granted
according to under power of attorney of mortgage and no real

estate or commercial mortgage on the Company.
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Commercial International Bank

Onluly 12, 2021, the Company has transferred part of its credit 63 514 928 71250942
facilities to a medium-term loan for an amount do not exceed
USD 4 120 600 for the purpose of financing the Company’s
operations. The duration of this loan is 5 years, the principal
ameount of the loan is then repaid on (20) twenty equal
guarterly installments the value of each installment is
USD 206 030. The first installment is due on September 30,
2021. The secand installment is due on December 31, 2021 and
so on respectively, every three months until the maturity of the
twentieth installment on June 30, 2026, with an annual interest
rate of 4.25% over the 6-month SOFR rate. The interest shall be
paid in addition to the commission of the highest debit balance
on the amounts withdraw per month for the duration of this
contract, from the date of use of this loan until the completion
of repayment of the loan from the principal, commissiens, and

others.

Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank

On February 7, 2021, the Company has transferred part of its
credit facilities to a medium-term loan for an amount of
USD 3 485 412 for the purpose of financing the Company’s
operations. The duration of this loan is 3 years, the principal
amount of the loan is then repaid on (36) thirty-six equal
monthly installments the value of each installment is USD 96
817. The first installment is due on March 31, 2021. The second
installment is due on April 30, 2021 and so on respectively,
every month until the maturity of the thirty-six installments on
February 28, 2024, with an annual interest rate of 3.25% over
the 6-month SOFR rate. The interest shall be paid in addition to
the commission of the highest debit balance on the amounts

8945 364 35873 469

withdraw per month for the duration of this contract, from the
date of use of this loan until the completion of repayment of the
loan from the principal, commissions, and others.

Total 137 237 751 196 831 486
Less:
Loan installments payable during the following year are

71582 327 89 249 669
included in current liabilities ( ) ( )

Borrowing non-current 65 655 424 107 581 817

- Loans are classified according to their tenars as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

According o borrowing companies EGP EGP

Dice Ready Made Garments Company 137 237 751 196 831 486

137 237 751 196 831 486
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18. Accounts and notes payable

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Description EGP EGP
Accounts payable 205782 012 205 820 258
Notes payable 46 331182 39 666 005
Total 252113 194 245 4B6 263
19. Due to related parties
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Description EGP EGP

Nagi Toma (Note 26) 15411 148 236 333

15 411 148 236 333

20. Creditors and other credit balances
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Description EGP EGP
Advance payments from customers 29 965 432 21478533
Shipping, customs clearance and service parties’ creditors 25622176 15848 035
Tax authority — credit balances 24 466 424 19 832 067
Accrued expenses 15 185420 18 095 366
Accrued salaries 13 312 520 5517 856
Tax authority — sccial contributions 11 290 515 7361179
Accrued interest 8929 478 4372718
Social insurance 1543 164 2 211 957
Fixed assets creditors 2667 235 --
Insurance from others 22 931 22931
Other credit balance 5969741 3892033

138 975 036 98 632 675

21. Capital
The authorized capital was amounted to EGP 300 million. The issued and paid-up capital amounted to

EGP 53 000 000 distributed over 53 000 000 shares after the General Assembly approved the capital increase of
EGP 25 000 000. The Commercial Register was registered on September 7, 2017, increase the number of shares
to 53 000 000 shares instead of 28 000 000 shares.

On December 4, 2018, the General Assembly approved the distribution of the issued share capital of the
Company by adjusting the nominal value of the share from EGP 1 to 20 piasters, thus making the issued and paid-
up capital of EGP 53 million distributed over 265 000 000 shares at a nominal value of 20 piasters per share.

On May 8, 2019, the General Assembly approved the issued capital increase from EGP 53 000 000 to
EGP 106 000 000 by amount of EGP 53 000 000 distributed on 265 000 000 shares as the share value is 20 piasters,
the total number of shared became 530 Q00 000 share and that is through the issuance of free shares of one free
share far each original share, and it was approved to publish the disclosure report for Dice Ready-Made Garments

Company related to this increase on August 8, 2019.
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On February 12, 2022 , the majority of the attended of the extraordinary assembly meeting has approved the
feasibility study provided by the Company’s board of directars relating to the increase of authorized share capital
from EGP 300 million to EGP 500 million and also for approving the increase of issued capital from EGP 106 million
to EGP 371 million with an increase of EGP 265 million in cash financed by inviting old shareholders of
subscription for the increase in the Company’s shares each according to the contribution in the Company’s share
capital through issuance of 1 325 million shares to be issued by nominal value of 20 piasters for each share. In
the case of not all issued shares not subscribed for, the subscribed shares will be sufficient whether they are fully
cover or not. The subscription will be done on a single stage and the subscribed amount cannot be redeemed.
On May 22, 2022, the company received a preliminary approval from the Financial Regulatary Authority (FRA)
for the company to publish the invitation to the old shareholders to subscribe to the shares of the company's
issued capital increase as described above.

the capital increase process was completed through the subscription of the cld shareholders in the increase
shares, and the value of the issued capital after the increase amounted to EGP 357 328 956, which was fully paid,
distributed over 1 786 B44 781 shares, The Commercial Register was registered by the increase on August 4,
2022.

The ownership structure is as follows:

Description Shares no. Shares Percenatge
Toma for commercial and industrial investments 494 536 182 %27.67
Nagi Samir Toma Thomas 377 830 000 %21.14
Maged Samir Toma Thomas 205 430 000 %11.5
United Motors & Heavy Equipment Co. L.L.C 145 882 360 8.17%
Saif Nagi Samir Toma Thomas 18 598 500 %1.04
Sherif Nagi Samir Toma Thomas 18 300 000 %1.02
Maryam Nagi Samir Toma Thomas ~ 17 300 000 0.97%
Total holders of 5% of the company's shares or more 1277 877 042 71.51%
Total holders of less than 5% of the company's shares 508 767 739 28.48%
Total 1786 644 781 %100

* The above-recorded figures are based on the names of shareholders issued by Misr El Makasa, depository and
centrally registry Company on December 31, 2023.

** On April 4, 2023, and based on the decision of the Board of Directors on March 25, 2023, the company
purchased 70 million treasury shares for an amount of EGP 31 500 000 at a value aof EGP 0.45 each. The General
Assembly held on 29 April 2023 unanimously approved the effects of the purchase of treasury shares from the
increase in voting rights and ownership percentage of the main shareholders (Mr. Nagy Samir Touma and Mr.
Maged Samir Toumna) and their associated parties to the percentage required to submit a compulsory purchase

offer,

On November 2023, the company decided to sell the treasury shares represented in 70 million shares through
the compulsory purchase offer submitted by Toma Company for Commercial and Industrial Investments in
alliance with Maged Samir Touma for an amount of 0.8 Egyptian pounds in the event that the market price
remains below the offer which led the company has recognized gain resulting from the sale of treasury shares
amounted to EGP 24.5 million that has been recorded in the retained earnings.
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22. Business combination reserve ([Common control reserve)
The Group acquired an additional 40% share in the capital of Master Line for Textile Industries (a subsidiary) on

September 10, 2015, which resulted in an increase in the Group's share in the subsidiary's capital without

affecting the Group's control over it. Gains resulted of the acquisition of this additional stack, amounted to

EGP 2 943 242 was included in the Common control reserve.

On December 25, 2018, the Group acquired an additional share of Alexandria Readymade Garments and
Alexandria Ready Made Garments Company. The share of the increase was 5% of the total capital of both
companies. This resulted in an increase in the Group's share in the subsidiary's capital without changing it. The
Group's control over these losses amounted ta EGP 2 367 605 which was included in the equity control
transactians.

On February 28, 2021, the Group acquired an additional share of Textile Print Plus, and the increase share
amounted to 24% of the total capital of the subsidiary, which resulted in an increase in the Group's share in the
capital of the subsidiary without changing the principle of the Group's contral over it, and the losses resulting
from the acquisition of this additional share amounted to EGP 5 507, which were included in Business

combination reserve in equity.

23. Income tax

Income tax charged to the statement of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
profit or loss

Description EGP EGP

Current income tax 41862734 42422 358
Deferred income tax 9938 172 (1608912)
Total 51 800 906 40 813 446

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities generating from Balance as of Balance as of
differences between the carrying amounts of
. December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
fixed assets and net book value on tax basis
Property, plant and equipment 46 565 949 36 627 777
Total deferred tax liabilities 46 565 949 36 627 777
24. Non-controlling interest
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Description EGP EGP
United Dyers Company 20572 788 17 687 512
Alexandria Group Companies (79 756) (80 161)
Textile print plus Company 8 5
Master Line 579 551
Egyptian for Knitting and Ready-Made 17 15
20 493 636 17 607 922
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December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
(Amended)

Description EGP EGP
Export subsidies income 102 050 594 65 045 181
(less) accelerated payment discount (6 976 904) (6 645 691)
Net exports subsidies income 95 073 690 58 399 490
Others 4772536 2391 573

99 846 226 60 791 063
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27. Earnings per share for the year

Translation of nates to the consclidated Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arobic

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
EGP EGP
(Amended)
Net earnings profit for the year after income tax 450688 036 120 756 290

Divided By:

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during

the year”
Earnings per share for the year (EGP / share) ***

1754137041 1046429 362

0.26 0.12.

* Until the date of approval of the financial statements, the Company did not prepare a dividend distribution
project, which, if prepared, will result into a reduction in the share’s share of the net profit for the year due to
the reduction of the year's profits after taxes in both the employee’s share of the distributions and the

remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors.

In application of the Decisions of the Prime Minister's No. 1568 and No. 4706 of 2022, which includes accounting

treatment to deal with the effects of maving foreign exchange rates, the share per share of the net total

comprehensive income becomes as follows:

For the year ended
December 31, 2022

Far the year ended
December 31, 2023

(Amended)
EGP EGP
Total comprehensive income for the year 450 688 036 17 746 399
Divided by:
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during 1754137 041 1 046 429 362

the year*
Total comprehensive income per share for the year
(EGP / share)

28. Right of use of assets (net)

0.26 0.02

Right of use assets balance as of December 31, 2023 is as follows:

December 31, 2023

EGP

Cost as of December 31, 2021 46 925 882
Additions during 2022 48 730 926
Disposals during 2022 (12 844 221)
Cost as of December 31, 2022 82 812 587
Additions during 2023 16 321 335
Disposals during 2023 (8981572)
Cost as of December 31, 2023 90 152 350
Accumulated amortization

Accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2021 (9 164 876)
Amortization during 2022 (18 686 991)
Amortization for disposals during 2022 1427 136
Accumulated amortization December 31, 2022 (26 424 731)
Amortization during 2023 (19 963 820)
Amortization for disposals during 2023 3189193
Accumulated amortization December 31, 2023 (43 199 418)
Net right of use assets as of December 31, 2023 46 952 932
Net right of use assets as of December 31, 2022 56 387 856
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As follows, allocation of the impact of lease liabilities on the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss during the period:

Statement of financial position Statement of profit
or loss
Description
Nan - current Current Interest costs
EGP EGP EGP
Present value of operating lease
liabilities discounted at the company’s 33 500 158 20 208 995 6 753 967

incremental borrowing rate

29. Company’s going concern

The accumulated losses of Sweeter Ready-made Garments Company [Subsidiary) as of December 31, 2023
exceeded half of the equity issued of the subsidiary at that date. Indicating that there is uncertainty concerning
the company’s going concern according to article no. 69 of Companies law no. 159 of 1981 amended by law no.
4 of 2018, The Subsidiary’s board of directors must invite to an extraordinary general assembly to discuss going
concern.

The accumulated losses of Alexandria Factory Ready-made Garments Company (Subsidiary) as of December 31,
2023 exceeded half of the equity issued of the subsidiary at that date. Indicating that there is uncertainty
concerning the company’s going concern according to article no. 63 of Companies law no. 159 of 1981 amended
by law no. 4 of 2018, The Subsidiary’s board of directors must invite to an extracrdinary general assembly to
discuss gaing concern.

The accumulated losses of Alexandria Ready-made Garments Company (Subsidiary) as of December 31, 2023
exceeded half of the equity issued of the subsidiary at that date. Indicating that there is uncertainty concerning
the company’s going concern according to article no. 69 of Companies law no. 159 of 1981 amended by law no.
4 of 2018, The Subsidiary’s board of directors must invite to an extraordinary general assembly to discuss going
concern.

30. Tax position

First: Corporate tax

Years from 1999 to 2009

The tax was inspected, Taxes form (19) was issued, and challenged at the specialized internal committee. The
decision of the committee was issued and appraved, and the dispute was agreed upon with the transfer of the
depreciation item and the interest to the appeal committee and decision. The appeal committee has confirmed
the results of tax authority’s inspection. The Company has disputed to the court to consider the other points of
contention and a request to close the dispute has been submitted in accordance with law no. 16 of 2020 and no
decision has been issued to date. However, the Company has settled the disputed tax dues.

Years from 2010 until 2016

The tax returns were submitted under the provisions of Law 91 of 2005, and tax dues were paid based on
submitted returns. The inspection was conducted, and the inspection results were not approved and transferred
to the specialized committee. Some items have been transferred to appeal committee and decision was issued
in favor of the Company and fixed assets item has been transferred to Tax Authority for re-inspection of the
opening balance. However, the Company has settled the disputed tax dues.

Years 2017 and 2019

The Company has been notified of the inspection, and documents and analysis are being prepared to determine
the date of the inspection. The tax returns have been submitted on the legal dates and the tax due by the
Company have been paid based on the submitted returns.

Years 2020 and 2022

The tax returns were submitted on the legal dates and the company was not naotified of the examination.
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Second: Payroll Tax:
From inception date until 2013
The books have been inspected, settled and paid any differences.

Years from 2014 to 2020
The Company has been notified of the inspection and the documents are being prepared, and the Cempany is

regularly paying the tax on legal dates.

Year 2021 and Year 2022
The coampany is committed to pay the manthly payroll tax on the legal dates and has not been notified of the

inspection to date.

Third: Sales Tax (value added tax):
From inception date until Year 2017
Inspected and settled until 2017. The tax differences due for those years have been paid.

Year 2018 until Year 2020
Tax returns have been submitted on the legal due dates and the Campany has not been notified of any inspection

to date.

Year 2021 and Year 2022
Tax returns have been submitted on the legal due dates.

Fourth: Stamp Tax:
From inception date until December 31, 2016

The stamp tax duty was inspected, tax dues were paid in full.

Year 2017 and Year 2018
The Company's books have been inspected and the tax authority has issued form (19) in which the Company

submitted an appeal form.

Year 2019 until Year 2020

The inspection has been done and the company has not been notified of the result to date.

Year 2021 and Year 2022

The Company has not been notified of any inspection to date.

Fifth: Withholding tax:
From the inception date until 2017

Those years were examined, and the tax differences were paid in full.

Years 2018 to 2022
The tax has been paid on the legal dates and the Company has not been notified with any inspection for these

years.

Sixth: Property Tax:
The dues were paid until 2021 and there are no dues for 2022, as a request was submitted to exempt factories

from paying real estate tax.

Seventh: Social Insurance:

On a regular basis, the Company pays monthly on the legal due dates to date.
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31. Contingent liabilities
In addition to the balances reported in the statement of financial position, the follawing liabilities are contingent
as of December 31, 2023, related to the letters of guarantee issued in favored third parties, and analyzed as

fallows:
Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Description EGP EGP
Letters of guarantee 123 841 098 72 462 656
Covered portion _ (37 393 738) (18 130 803)
Uncovered portion 86 447 360 54 331 853

The company also manages the risks related to capital commitments by maintaining an acceptable level of cash

to match the various sources of financing.

32. Financial instruments and related risks
The Company's financial instruments consist of financial assets and liabilities. Financial assets include cash

balances at banks, due from related parties and receivables. Financial liabilities include the accounts payable,
due to related parties and creditors.

The Company is exposed to a number of risks arising from the exercise of its activities which affect the values of
these financial assets and liabilities as well as related revenues and expenses. The following are the most
important risks, principles and policies that the Company follows in managing these risks:

Capital management
The Company's objectives in managing capital are to maintain the Company's ability to continue its activity so
that it can achieve returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and provide an appropriate return

to shareholders.

The Company's financing structure consists of shareholders paid up capital in addition to retained earnings. The
Capital Risk Management Committee reviews the financing structure of the Company on an ongoing basis every
three months and reviews the cost of financing the Company through the leverage ratio, where the Company
aims to have a debt ratio of 0% to 10%.

The Company is exposed ta certain risks associated with its activities, such as market risk, which includes the risk
of return and the risk of foreign currency. Liquidity risk may also affect the carrying amounts of financial assets
and liabilities on the statement of financial position as well as income and related expenses included in the
statement of income. The Company manages its capital in order to maintain the Company's ability to continue,
and to achieve the highest return to shareholders by minimizing the impact of these risks to the lowest level
through operating and financing activities to maintain optimal ratios of borrowing balances. The following are
the main risks to the Company and policies and procedures to mitigate the impact of such risks:

Foreign exchange risk
This risk is due to changes in foreign exchange rates that affect foreign exchange payments and receipts as well
as foreign currency assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies denominated in
foreign currencies are translated using the prevailing rate at the balance sheet date. For the purpose of reducing
this risk ta a minimum level, the Company maintains sufficient balances of monetary assets in local currency and
foreign currencies to meet its liabilities using the same currency an their due dates.

The value of manetary assets denominated in foreign currencies amounted to EGP 618 813 171 and the monetary
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies amounted to EGP 1 033 562 500 at the date of the financial position.
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As previously indicated, the company is primarily exposed to the risk of foreign currencies that arise from the
company’s sales made in these currencies in the clothing industry.

The following table shows the company's sensitivity to a 60% (2022: 10%) increase or decrease in the Egyptian
pound against foreign currency exchange rates. 60% is the sensitivity rate used in preparing internal reports on
foreign currency risk and presenting them to responsible managers, and it represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably expected change in foreign currency exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only the
outstanding balances of items of a monetary nature in foreign currencies and is based on adjusting the translation
of the balances of those items at the end of the period by a change of 60% in the exchange rates of those
currencies.

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding berrowing balances, and also includes customer balances in foreign
currencies.

The positive number in the table below indicates an increase in profit or equity when the strength of the Egyptian
pound increases by 60% against the foreign currency in question. If the Egyptian pound weakens by 60% against
the relevant foreign currency, this will lead to an oppasite effect of the same value on profit or equity, and the
values below will become negative.

The effect of foreign currencies

Description December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
| Profits / {losses) (248 849 597) | (36 716 420)

Interest rate risk

This risk is the change in market interest rates which adversely affects business results and values of financial
assets and liabilities. The Company monitors interest rate changes on an ongoing basis. In the event of a
significant increase in interest rates, the Company relies on its own sources of financing to avoid fluctuations in
interest rates and their impact on the fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A ‘100 basis point’ (1%) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates increase/decrease 600 basis points and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
for the year ended as of December 31, 2023, would decrease / increase by EGP 74.4 million (2022: decrease /
increase by EGP 11.7 million). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest cash flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reparting period. The contractual maturity is based
on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

Credit risk

This risk is the inability of clients granted credit to pay their dues. In order to reduce this risk, the Group exports
part of its production abroad and take into account trading with reputable clients have good credit worthiness.
The Company's management monitors maturity dates, credit terms and prepares aging analysis to recognize
losses resulting from the impairment of these assets.
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The company reviews this risk and reports on these risks and means of countering their impact on the financial

statements. The maximum credit risk is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
{(Amended)
EGP EGP
Accounts receivahle 714 484 700 526 051 501
Other debit balances 201 196 715 193134 412
915 681 415 719 185 913

- Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the factor that may affect the Company's ability to repay part or all of its obligations. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining an acceptable cash level and matching various sources of financing
including bank facilities and factoring of foreign belling to clients denominated in dollars.

The remaining contractual dues of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments, are as follows:

less than a year More than a Total
year
December 31, 2023 EGP EGP EGP
Non - interest bearing liabilities 504 604 352 -- 504 604 352
Interest bearing liahilities 1274145772 99 155 583 1373 301 355
1778 750 124 99 155 583 1877 905 707
less than a year More than a Total
year
December 31, 2022 EGP EGP EGP
Non - interest bearing liabilities 432 534 812 -- 432534812
Interest bearing liabilities 1078 892378 154 013 914 1232906 292
1511427 190 154 013 914 1665 441 104

- Leverage ratio

The leverage ratio, which is determined by total liabilities to total equity, was of the end of the year as follows:

Total liahilities
Total equity

Percentage

Fair value estimate

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
EGP EGP
1924 471 656 1702 068 881
1034 936 435 559 748 449
%186 %304

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are estimated at the following levels:

Level ane The quoted prices of financial instruments at fair value in active markets.
Level two Prices quoted in an active market for financial instruments, or prices determined by the
| investment funds, managers or other valuation methods in which all significant inputs are
based on observables or comparable market information, either directly or indirectly.
Level three Valuation methods in which significant inputs are not based on observables or comparahle
market information

The investments at fair value as of December 31, 2023 amount EGP 160 965 876.
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33. Significant events during the current year and subsequent period

Originaily Issued in Arghic

On February 2, 2023, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Central Bank of Egypt decided in its meeting to

maintain the overnight deposit and lending rates and the main operation rate of the Central Bank at 16.25%

17.25% and 16.75%, respectively, and the credit and discount rate at 16.75%.
On March 6, 2023, Prime Minister's Decision No. 883 of 2023 amending the provisions of accounting

standards, The main amendments are summarized below:

New or reissued

Main amendments summary

Expected impact

Date of application

standards on financial

i statements
Egyptian  Accounting These standards were reissued in 2023, | Company Applying modifications to add
Standard No. (10) where the reassessment model was | management will | the option of using revaluation
amended 2023 allowed for subsequent measurement | not use the | model to the financial periods

“Fixed assets and its
depreciatian”

Egyptian  Accounting
Standard No. (23)
amended 2023

“Intangible assets”

of fixed and intangible assets

This has resulted in the modification of
the paragraphs associated with the use
of the reassessment model option for
certain applicable Egyptian accounting
standards, as follows:

Egyptian Accounting Standard (5)
"Accounting pclicies and changes in
accounting estimates and errors”
Egyptian Accounting Standard (24)
"Income Tax”

Egyptian Accounting Standard (30)
“Financial Statements”

Egyptian Accounting Standard (31)
“Impairments of Fixed Assets”

Egyptian Accounting Standard (49)
“Lease Contracts”

reassessment
model during

this year.

starting on or after 1 of lanuary

2023 cumulatively;

Demonstrating the cumulative
effect of the initial application of
the reassessment model Adding
it to the revaluation surplus

account along with equity at the

beginning of the financial

period in_which the company

applies the model for the first

time.

On 30 March 2023, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Central Bank of Egypt (CBE) decided in its

meeting to raise the overnight deposit and lending rates and the main operation rate of the Central
Bank by 200 basis points to reach 18.25% 19.25% and 18.75%, respectively, and the credit and discount

rate was raised by 200 basis paints to reach 18.75%.

On 18 May 2023, the Central Bank of Egypt's Monetary Policy Committee decided in its meeting to

maintain the overnight deposit and lending rates and the main operation rate of the Central Bank at
18.25% 19.25% and 18.75%, respectively, and the credit and discount rate at 18.75%.

On May 17, 2023, the Prime Minister's Decree 1847 of 2023 was issued amending some provisions of

the Egyptian Accounting Standards by adding Annex (B) to the amended Egyptian Accounting Standard

No. (13) 2015 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates, which includes a special accounting

treatment to deal with the effects of moving foreign exchange rates.

On 3 August 2023, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Central Bank of Egypt (CBE) decided in its

meeting to raise the overnight deposit and lending rates and the main operation rate of the Central

Bank by 100 basis points to reach 19.25% 20.25% and 19.75%, respectively, and the credit and discount

rate was raised by 100 basis points to reach 19.75%.

Dice Ready-Made Garments S.A.E (Dice for Sport and Casual Wear)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

37




Transiation of notes to the consolidated Financial Statements
Originally Issued in Arahic

On 21 September 2023, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Central Bank of Egypt (CBE) decided in
its meeting to maintain the cvernight deposit and lending rates and the main operation rate of the
Central Bank at 19.25% 20.25% and 19.75%, respectively, and the credit and discount rate at 19.75%,.

On September 19, 2023, the company received a letter from the consortium of Toma for Commercial
and Industrial Investments with Majid Samir Touma Thomas, including an initial offer to acquire 1.607
billion shares representing 90% of the company's issued capital shares, and the company explained that
the offer includes an initial purchase price of EGP 0.65 per share, through a mandatory purchase offer

for the company's shares.

On October 17, 2023, the Financial Regulatory Authority (FRA) approved the publication of the afore
mentioned mandatory tender offer, provided that the offer includes the purchase of up to 838.137
million shares representing 46.9% of the company's shares at a price of EGP 0.65 per share. The sum of
what was displayed to the total shares to be purchased. In the event that the shares offered for sale
exceed the number of shares to be purchased, the offeror will purchase from all the shareholders who
responded to the offer in proportion to the total shares to the total shares to he purchased.

On November 8, 2023, the EGX announced the amendment of the afore mentioned offer price to EGP
0.80 pershareinstead of EGP 0.65 per share, while maintaining the rest of the conditions for announcing
the purchase offer approved by the Authority without modification.

On November 15, 2023, the EGX announced the quantities of shares responding to the afore mentioned
offer with a total number of 544 536 000 shares.

On November 19, 2023, the company announced that Touma for Commercial and Industrial
Investments has purchased 494 546 182 shares of the company's shares at a rate of 27.68% according
to the afore mentioned compulsory purchase offer for an amount of 395 628 945 EGP at an average
price of EGP 0.8 per share. In addition, Maged Samir Touma purchased 50 million shares of the
company's shares according to the mandatory purchase offer referred to above for an amount of EGP
40 million at an average price of EGP 0.8 per share, bringing the percentage of the shareholding after
the purchase to 11.5%,

During October 2023, the war broke out between Israel and the Palestinians which had an impact on
the region and on the global economy and on Egypt in particular because of its close proximity to the
running events. However it’s too soon to take a full overview evaluation on the effect of war as it's
improbable to predict to what extend it would take any further escalation. But it's quiet clear that it has
no impact for the company’s activities

On November 2, 2023, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Central Bank of Egypt decided in its
meeting to maintain the overnight deposit and lending rates and the main operation rate of the Central
Bank at 19.25%, 20.25% and 19.75%, respectively, and the credit and discount rate at 19.75%.

On December 21, 2023, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Central Bank of Egypt decided in its
meeting to maintain the overnight deposit and lending rates and the main operation rate of the Central
Bank at 19.25%, 20.25% and 19.75%, respectively, and the credit and discount rate at 19.75%.

On February 1, 2024, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Central Bank of Egypt (CBE) decided in its
meeting to raise the overnight deposit and lending rates and the main operation rate of the Central
Bank by 200 basis points to reach 20.25% 22.25% 21.75%, respectively, and the credit and discount rate
was raised by 200 basis points to reach 21.75%.
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On March 3, 2024, the Prime Minister s Decree No. 636 of 2024 was issued amending some provisions
of the Egyptian Accounting Standards, which resuited in the replacement of Standards No. (13) The
affacts of changes in foreign exchange rates, Standard No. (17) independent Financial Statements and
Standard No. (34) Real Estate Investment from the Egyptian standards referred to in the standards
attachad to this decision, provided that this decision is published in the Official Gazette and comes into
farce from the day following the date of its publication.

The impiementation of the Egyplian accounting standards No. (12 The effects of changes in foreign
exchange rates will led to combined effect that will affect the shareholders eqguity.

The combined effect for the re-evaluation of the manetary assets and lahilities using the spot price for
the early adoption will be losses amountad to EGF 248 248 537 will be amended an the retained
sarnings as of January 1, 2024,

On March 6, 2024, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Central Bank of Egypt decided in its
extraordinary meeting to raisa the overnight deposit and lending rates and the main operaticn rate of
the Central Bank by 660 basis poirts to reach 27.25% 28.25% 27.75%, respectively, the credit and
discount rate was raised by GO0 basis points ta reach 28.75%.

In addition, the Central Bank has decided to allowing the exchange rate tc be determined by market

forces.

34, years adjustments

At a result of the uncertainty and certainty regarding the collection of export subsidies recently, the Board of
Directors decided on May 17, 2023, to change the system of recording export suppaort revenue in the company's
gooks from registering support at maturity ta registering support when collecting it, and this resuited in the
following ad;ustments:

Financial Statement  Before Adjustment After Adjustment Difference
Retained Earnings balance for the year Equity 134 471 297 40 407 B85 (94 063 612)
31 December 2022
Met Profit [or Lhe year 31 Decernber Equity 161 382 R14 120 756 230 {40626 524)
2022
Dektors and ather dehit Balances (Net) Financial Fosition 327 B24 548 193 134 412 134630 136
non 31 December 2022
Other income for the year end 31 Profit or loss 101 417 587 B0 751 063 (40 626 524
December 2022
[Increase in Debtars and ather Debit Cash flow (116 822 368) (76 156 444) (40 626 524)
Balance)
Net Profit per Share for Lhe period Profit or foss 0.15 012 0.03
ended 31 December 2022 (EGP [ share)
Farnings per share (EGP / share) from Comarehansive 0.08 0.02 0.04
Tolal comprehensive income Income

35. Fiscal year
The fiscal year begins on Januery 1 and ends on December 31 of each year,

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director

Mr. Victar Fakhry Mr. Nagi Thoma
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